
 

  

    

   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

    
      

    
 

 

 

 

  

 
  

    

CATS + TORFP J04B8400007 

MVA.NET and VISUAL BASIC PROGRAMMING SUPPORT 

Amendment #1 Issued: May 8, 2019 

THIS AMENDMENT IS BEING ISSUED TO UPDATE AND CLARIFY CERTAIN 
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE ABOVE-REFERENCED TORFP.  ALL 
INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS BINDING ON ALL WHO RESPOND 
TO THIS TORFP. 

For the following changes/additions, any new language has been underlined and marked in bold 
(i.e. new) and any deleted language has been marked with a strikeout (i.e., deleted) 

SEE ATTACHED INFORMATION: 

1. Delete in its entirety “Attachment A. TO Pre-Proposal 
Conference Form” replace with “Attachment A. TO Pre-
Proposal Conference Form (revised 5.8.19)”. 
See attached updated Attachment A. 

End of Amendment #1 

Date Issued: May 8, 2019 
By: Peggy Tischler, Procurement Officer 
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Attachment A. TO Pre-Proposal Conference Response Form (revised 5.8.19) 

Solicitation Number J04B8400007  

.NET and Visual Basic Programming Support 

A TO Pre-proposal conference will be held on Wednesday, May 15, 2019 from 10:00AM – 11:30AM 
(EST), at 7201 Corporate Center Drive, Hanover MD 21076, 4th Floor Board Room.  

Those wishing to attend the Conference via the web may request a meeting invitation by emailing Peggy 
Tischler at ptischler@mdot.maryland.gov  no later than 2:00 PM on Monday, May 13, 2019 (EST).  Upon 
receipt of the email and form, the TO Procurement Officer will reply with a registration email with a link 
that may be used to register for the conference.  See Section 4.2.7 for details. 

For in-person attendance, please return this form to Peggy Tischler at ptischler@mdot.maryland.gov  later 
than 2:00 PM on Monday, May 13, 2019 (EST)  advising whether or not you plan to attend. The 
completed form should be returned via e-mail or fax to the Procurement Officer at the contact information 
below.  

Please return this form by Monday, May 13, 2019 at 2:00PM (EST), advising whether or not you plan to 
attend. The completed form should be returned via e-mail or fax to the TO Procurement Officer at the 
contact information below: 

Peggy Tischler 
MDOT TSO 
E-mail: ptischler@mdot.maryland.gov 
Fax #: 410-865-1388 

Please indicate: 

Yes, the following representatives will be in attendance.  
Attendees (Check the TORFP for limits to the number of attendees allowed): 
1. 
2. 

No, we will not be in attendance.    

________ We would like to attend via the web (please provide email addresses of attendees needing login 
      information) 

Please specify whether any reasonable accommodations are requested (see TORFP § 4.1“TO Pre-
proposal conference”): 

Offeror:  
Offeror Name (please print or type) 

By: 
Signature/Seal 

Printed Name:  
Printed Name 

Title:  
Title 

Date: 

TORFP for the Maryland Department of Transportation       1 
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 THIS PAGE HAS BEEN LEFT INTENTIONALLY 
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CATS + TORFP J04B8400007 

MVA.NET and VISUAL BASIC PROGRAMMING SUPPORT  

Amendment #3 Issued: May 23, 2019 

THIS AMENDMENT IS BEING ISSUED TO PROVIDE A RESPONSE TO 
QUESTIONS SUBMITTED AND UPDATE AND CLARIFY CERTAIN 
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE ABOVE-REFERENCED TORFP.  ALL 
INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS BINDING ON ALL WHO RESPOND 
TO THIS TORFP. 

SEE ATTACHED INFORMATION:  

1. Questions and Answers No. 1 - 33 

                               

 

 

 

 

 

End of Amendment #3  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date Issued: May 23, 2019 
By: Peggy Tischler, Procurement Officer 



MVA.NET and Visual Basic Programming Support 
TORFP #J04B8400007 
   Amendment #3 

Questions and Answers - No.  1 – 33 
 

1. Question: The position of Application Programmer does not have any preferred 
experience listed in Appendix 6. Additional Resources Experience - Preferred. Is this 
correct, or is there any preferred experience for this position? 

 
Answer: Please refer to amendment #2. 

 
2. Question: I was wondering if you could tell me whether SOLICITATION NUMBER 

J04B8400007 MOTOR VEHICLE ADMINISTRATION (MVA) .NET AND VISUAL 
BASIC PROGRAMMING SUPPORT is a new procurement for your agency, or whether 
it’s a contract up for renewal? 
 

Answer: J04B8400007 is a consolidation of new and re-compete services. 
 

If it’s a renewal, would you be able to pass along a copy of the expiring contract? 
 

Answer: Not a contract agreement renewal. 
  See answer to question #5 for re-compete contract. 

 
3. Question: We are interested in bidding on the Programming Support RFP but were 

unable to attend the Pre-Proposal Conference. Would you be able to forward the attendee 
list from the conference so we may follow up with those who may be interested in 
partnering? 

 
Answer: The attendance sheet will be issued with Amendment 2 to all Master 
Contractors under Functional Area 5. Also, DoIT will post the Amendment under 
the Solicitation TORFP on the DoIT website. 
 

4. Question:     Is this the combination of existing RFP’s and came as rebid as new RFP, if 
so what are those RFPs? 

 
Answer:  See answer to question #2.   

 
5. Question:     Is there an Incumbent, if yes can you share the incumbent name and current 

contract value? 
 

Answer: Incumbent is ARINC, Contract value is $7,466,160. 
 
 
 
 



6. Question:     Is it mandatory for the key personnel to have prior State of Maryland-MVA 
and the listed systems experience? 
 

Answer: No. 
 

7. Question:     We are not SBR firm however we are interested to be the part of the bid. 
Please advice if we can subcontract with SBR prime bidder firm interested in bidding. 
We are also not MBE or VSBE certified as well.  
 

Answer: Yes, you can subcontract with a designated Small Business Reserve 
(SBR) firm. 

 
8. Question:     Is there an incumbent currently working in this position? 

 
Answer: See answer to question #5 
 

9. Question:     Do we need to submit three candidates for Project Manager, Application 
Development Expert, Architect Application (Senior)? If not can you please specify the 
positions.  

Answer: You must submit three (3) Key Personnel; one (1) Project Manager, one 
(1) Application Development Expert, one (1) Architect Application (Senior). 

  
10. Question: Section 3.6.6 requires the TO Contractor to supply a Security Plan “no less 

rigorous than that of the State.” Is the State expecting a fully detailed Security Plan at 
time of bid or is this expected after award?  
 

Answer: The security plan is an attachment to this TORFP.  The TO contractor 
must remain in compliance with the security plan throughout the contract. This 
will be discussed at the kick-off. 

 
11. Question: Section 3.6.6 – Will it be acceptable to indicate compliance with the State’s 

written Security policy (Security Plan) or is the State expecting the TO Contractor’s 
plan? 

 
Answer: See answer to question #10. 
 
 
 

 



12. Questions: Section 5.4.2 – J.2 – asks the offeror to furnish all agreements including 
software license agreements, end user license agreements, etc. Does the State currently 
use and subject to agreements that are provided by a Contractor that will be required in 
order for a new TO contractor to be successful? If so, will the State provide the software, 
tools or licenses that this requirement refers to? 

 
 Answer: No, we are not aware of any agreements. 

  
13. Question:   If a company is dually certified as a MBE and a VSBE, can that company 

fulfill both MBE(up to 50% as Prime) and VSBE requirements for this TORFP? 
 

Basis of this question:  We are certified as both, MBE and VSBE, and are dually 
supporting contracts at DHS, DPSCS, DHMH and DoIT.  The goal of 1% for VSBE in 
our direct experience proves difficult at times on staffing contracts.  1% is hard to equate 
to a FTE thus finding short term task orders leaves the VSBE basically dormant during 
the contract.  This unfortunately ends up being the experience of most VSBE’s on 
staffing based contracts with .5%-1% requirements.    

 
Answer: Per COMAR  21.11.13.05 C2-  
§If a solicitation contains an MBE goal and a VSBE goal, participation by a 
subcontractor dually-certified as an MBE and a VSBE may be counted toward 
meeting both the MBE and VSBE contract goals to the extent its participation 
meets the cumulative MBE and VSBE contract goals, or portions thereof that it is 
committed to perform. 

  
14. Question: Page 29 Section 3.9.2  Substitution Prior to and 30 Days After Task Order  

Execution. 
 

A. Prior to Task Order Execution or within thirty (30) days after Task Order 
Execution, the Offeror may substitute proposed Key Personnel only under the following 
circumstances:  vacancy occurs due to the sudden termination, resignation, or approved 
leave of absence due to an Extraordinary Personnel Event, or death of such personnel. To 
qualify for such substitution, the Offeror must describe to the State's satisfaction the 
event necessitating substitution and must demonstrate that the originally proposed 
personnel are actual full-time direct employees with the Offeror (subcontractors, 
temporary staff or 1099 contractors do not qualify).  Proposed substitutions shall be of 
equal caliber or higher, in the State's sole discretion.  Proposed substitutes deemed by the 
State to be less qualified than the originally proposed individual may be grounds for pre-
award disqualification or post-award termination. 

 



The State has indicated award of this TORFP is not anticipated to occur until 
(approximately) the end of the calendar year. Our understating of Section 3.9.2 is that any 
of the three proposed key personnel who would might be available upon task execution 
must be full-time employees of the Master Contractor in order to be eligible for 
substitution.  As this TORFP is designated as SBR, this clause would preclude many 
small businesses from participating since the expense of bringing on three FTEs in hope 
of an award 7 months down the road is cost prohibitive. It also precludes having any of 
these key positions being offered to the participating MBE and VSBE.  

 
Would the State be willing to remove this clause as it puts unreasonable burden on the 
resources of a small company?  

 
  Answer: No.  
 

15. Question: Prior to engaging the awarded contractor, will the State conduct a Security 
Assessment, thus establishing a security baseline for the incoming contractor?   

 
Answer: See Section 3.6 Security Requirements in the Solicitation TORFP 

  
16. Question: Please confirm the place of performance. 

  a. Is there an opportunity for remote work or is most of the work completed on-site? 
 

Answer: See page iii in the Solicitation TORFP, for primary place of 
performance.  
Remote work is not anticipated but will be at the discretion of the TO Manager. 

 
17. Question: Is it the plan for the resources employed by the current incumbent, United  

Technologies, to remain on the contract and for the new contractor to supplement and 
work with those resources? Or will these resources be replaced by the new contractor?  

 
Answer: Incumbent is ARINC. The new TO Offeror is responsible for providing 
resources that satisfy the requirements of the Solicitation TORFP. 

 
18. Question: Is the state currently very satisfied with the work being performed by the  

 resources provided by the current incumbent? 
 

Answer: Yes. 
 
 
 



19. Question: When is expected NTP? 
 

Answer: Anticipated month for NTP, December. 
 

20. Question: Section 3.8.2 “Preferred Offeror Experience” states: 
 

Offeror to demonstrate experience in a number of contractual engagements (as described 
above) with the following:  
• Engagements where the Offeror provided multiple full-time personnel resources 
having Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) certifications. 

 
Will the State explain their reasoning behind this preferred offeror requirement? We 
understand that it is important for the actual resources to have these certifications (or 
similar) since they are performing the work, and our company fully intends to provide 
resources with those certifications. However, would the State consider eliminating or 
revising the above-mentioned bullet point as a “preferred qualification” of the offeror?  It 
is of our opinion that the provision / management of non-MCP technical professionals is 
no different than the provision / management of MCP technical professionals and that 
past experience in providing “multiple full-time personnel resources having MCP 
certifications” will have no bearing on our ability to provide / manage the resources on 
this contract.  

 
Answer: The preferred offeror experience will remain as-is. 

 
21. Question: Attachment B- Financial Proposal does not include a number of hours for 

optional resources. Will these rates be used as a criterion to rank potential vendors? If so, 
how does the state intend to use the hourly rates towards ranking since the numbers do 
not ultimately get calculated into the evaluated “Total Proposal Price” at the bottom of 
the calc sheet?  

 
Answer: Yes. The rates for optional resources will be scored by labor category 
and consolidated into an overall score using an identical formula for all vendors 
being evaluated. The overall score will be used as a factor in ranking vendors. 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 



22. Question: Is this an existing contract or new contract?  If existing, could you please 
       provide the name of the incumbent? 

 
Answer: See answer to question #2 & #5 

 
23. Question: Does the Agency expect majority of the work to be done offsite?  Is it correct 

to assume that TO Contractor personnel will be onsite only if/when project needs arise? 
 

Answer: See answer to question #16. 
 

24. Question: Besides DLS, are there other systems anticipated to need upgrade during the 
contract duration? 
 

Answer: See Section 2.2 Background and Purpose in the Solicitation TORFP. 
 

25. Question: Section 2.2.2.B.2 states, “The team is managed by an MDOT/MVA IT 
supervisor, IT manager, or IT Assistant Director who manages all resources in terms of 
which projects contractor personnel are assigned.”  Does this mean that MDOT/MVA 
management will be responsible for assigning tasks to the TO Contractor, and that the TO 
Contractor’s Project Manager will then be responsible for managing the assigned tasks 
and activities?  Or does it mean that MDOT/MVA management will manage the day-to-
day activities of the contractor personnel? 
 

Answer: Yes, the TO Contractor Project Manager will be responsible for 
managing the assigned tasks and activities.  

 
26. Question: Section 3.5.4 Cyber Security/Data Breach Insurance – Is proof of such 

insurance expected at the time of proposal submission or after award notification? 
   

Answer: Offeror must present proof of insurance, 5 Business Days after 
recommended award. 

 
27. Question: Can you please confirm if MCP certifications are required for all key 

personnel? 
 

Answer: Please refer to Section 1.1.1 of TORFP. 
 
 

 
 



28. Question: Would MDOT/MVA consider an extension of the proposal due date? 
 

Answer: No. 
 

29. Question: Would MDOT/MVA consider awarding this Task Order to more than one (1) 
Master Contractor?  
 

Answer: No. 
  

  30. Question:  Would the MDOT/MVA consider increase the number of pages for the  
  Executive Summary? 

 
 Answer: No. 

  
31. Question: How many resources (team size) are working on this project with the current 

incumbent?  
  

Answer: Currently, Incumbent has 6 resources.  
 

32. Question:  Section 1.1.1 on page 7 states “Offeror Personnel must possess the following 
certifications for the Key Personnel proposed: 
Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) 
Applications Development Expert 
Architect, Application (Senior) 

 
Does the Project Manager needs to have the above certifications as well? 

 
Answer: No. 

 
33. Question:  What is the anticipated Start date for the project? 

 
Answer: See answer to question #19. 

  
 

The End of Questions and Answers No. 1-33 





























 

CATS + TORFP J04B8400007 

MVA.NET and VISUAL BASIC PROGRAMMING SUPPORT  

Amendment #5 Issued: June 4, 2019 

THIS AMENDMENT IS BEING ISSUED TO PROVIDE A RESPONSE TO 
QUESTIONS SUBMITTED AND UPDATE AND CLARIFY CERTAIN 
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE ABOVE-REFERENCED TORFP.  ALL 
INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS BINDING ON ALL WHO RESPOND 
TO THIS TORFP. 

  

 

 See Attached Q &A’s 

  

1. Questions and Answers Nos. 82 – 83. 

  

The Question and Answer period has closed. 

 

End of Amendment #5  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date Issued: June 4, 2019 
By: Peggy Tischler, Procurement Officer 



MVA.NET and Visual Basic Programming Support 
TORFP #J04B8400007 

  
Questions and Answers (Issued with Amendment #5) 

       Nos.  82 - 83 

82. Question #72 in Amendment #4 was partially answered. Can MDOT/MVA clarify the 
following: 

a. Under Section 3.8.2. 1. b) what is MVA looking for in “Total number of client 
devices” and “Total number of server devices”?  
 
Answer: We want the offeror to identify the count of client devices and server 
devices. 
 
 

b. If it means that we need to identify the count of such devices, what is the 
purpose? 
 
Answer: The purpose of the question is to provide a data point to assist the MVA 
in assessing offeror experience in working with client server systems, the scale of 
such systems and the inherent issues with small vs. larger scale systems. 

 

83. Question: The answers to Question #58 and Question #67 in Amendment #4 indicated 
that Microsoft Certified Professional (MCP) certification is required for the two key 
personnel – Applications Development Expert and Architect, Application (Senior). 
However, as pointed out Microsoft no longer offers “MCP certification” – please see 
link: https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/learning/microsoft-certified-professional.aspx . In 
this context, can MDOT/MVA allow Offerors to propose key personnel with equivalent 
certifications such as Microsoft Fundamental certification(s) or Microsoft Associate 
certification(s)? 
 

 Answer: 
For this opportunity, the MVA is specifically seeking expert knowledge of VB6 
for the two key positions.  Since VB6 is no longer supported by Microsoft, having 
earned the MCP certification earlier in their career indicates the required VB6 
knowledge which is why we are requiring it for those two positions. 

 
  

The End of Questions and Answers Nos. 82 – 83 (issued with Amendment #5) 
 

The Question and Answer period has closed. 

https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.microsoft.com%2Fen-us%2Flearning%2Fmicrosoft-certified-professional.aspx&data=02%7C01%7Cptischler%40mdot.maryland.gov%7C7ab1b4af3c0f4162ad8e08d6e5d94063%7Cb38cd27c57ca4597be2822df43dd47f1%7C0%7C0%7C636949118586340088&sdata=TIEUqEeMYgYJ%2FNBzY0lHyuHa8auuU9fNGLHzwNl%2FvmY%3D&reserved=0
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